Worcestershire County Council

Agenda

Overview and Scrutiny
Performance Board

Friday, 28 April 2023, 2.00 pm
Council Chamber, County Hall, Worcester

All County Councillors are invited to attend and participate

This document can be provided in alternative formats such as Large Print, an audio recording or
Braille; it can also be emailed as a Microsoft Word attachment. Please contact Scrutiny on
telephone number 01905 844963 or by emailing scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

&, worcestershire

Find out more online:
www.worcestershire.gov.uk


mailto:democraticservices@worcestershire.gov.uk

DISCLOSING INTERESTS

There are now 2 types of interests:
'Disclosable pecuniary interests' and 'other disclosable interests'

WHAT IS A 'DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST' (DPI)?

¢ Any employment, office, trade or vocation carried on for profit or gain

e Sponsorship by a 3 party of your member or election expenses

e Any contract for goods, services or works between the Council and you, a firm where
you are a partner/director, or company in which you hold shares

¢ Interests in land in Worcestershire (including licence to occupy for a month or longer)

e Shares etc (with either a total nominal value above £25,000 or 1% of the total issued
share capital) in companies with a place of business or land in Worcestershire.

NB Your DPIs include the interests of your spouse/partner as well as you

WHAT MUST | DO WITH A DPI?
e Register it within 28 days and
e Declare it where you have a DPI in a matter at a particular meeting
- you must not participate and you must withdraw.
NB It is a criminal offence to participate in matters in which you have a DPI

WHAT ABOUT 'OTHER DISCLOSABLE INTERESTS'?
e No need to register them but
¢ You must declare them at a particular meeting where:
You/your family/person or body with whom you are associated have
a pecuniary interest in or close connection with the matter under discussion.

WHAT ABOUT MEMBERSHIP OF ANOTHER AUTHORITY OR PUBLIC BODY?

You will not normally even need to declare this as an interest. The only exception is where the
conflict of interest is so significant it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public
interest.

DO | HAVE TO WITHDRAW IF | HAVE A DISCLOSABLE INTEREST WHICH ISN'T A DPI?
Not normally. You must withdraw only if it:
o affects your pecuniary interests OR
relates to a planning or regulatory matter
e AND itis seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest.

DON'T FORGET

e If you have a disclosable interest at a meeting you must disclose both its existence
and nature — 'as noted/recorded' is insufficient

o Declarations must relate to specific business on the agenda

- General scattergun declarations are not needed and achieve little

e Breaches of most of the DPI provisions are now criminal offences which may be
referred to the police which can on conviction by a court lead to fines up to £5,000
and disqualification up to 5 years

e Formal dispensation in respect of interests can be sought in appropriate cases.

Head of Legal and Democratic Services July 2012 WCC/SPM summary/f



worcestershire

Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board
Friday, 28 April 2023, 2.00 pm, County Hall, Worcester

Membership

Councillors:

Clir Tom Wells (Chairman), Clir Alan Amos (Vice Chairman), ClIr Alastair Adams,
Clir Brandon Clayton, Clir Matt Dormer, Clir Steve Mackay, Clir Emma Stokes,
Clir Shirley Webb and ClIr Richard Udall

Co-opted Church Representatives (for education matters)
Mr T Reid (Church Representative - Church of England)

Parent Governor Representatives (for education matters)
Mr M Hughes (Parent Governor Representative)

Agenda

Item No Subject Page No

1 Apologies and Welcome

2 Declaration of Interest and of any Party Whip

3 Public Participation

Members of the public wishing to take part should notify the Assistant
Director for Legal and Governance in writing or by e-mail indicating both
the nature and content of their proposed participation no later than
9.00am on the working day before the meeting (in this case 27 April
2023). Further details are available on the Council's website. Enquiries
can also be made through the telephone number/e-mail address listed in
this agenda and on the website.

4 Confirmation of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting To follow
5 Draft Scrutiny Report: Developer-Funded Highways Infrastructure 1-36
6 Refresh of the Scrutiny Work Programme 37 - 58

Agenda produced and published by the Assistant Director for Legal and Governance, County Hall, Spetchley
Road, Worcester WR5 2NP. To obtain further information or hard copies of this agenda, please contact
Samantha Morris 01905 844963 email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

All the above reports and supporting information can be accessed via the Council’s website Council's
Website

Date of Issue: Thursday, 20 April 2023


mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/cms/democratic-services/minutes-and-agendas.aspx
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/cms/democratic-services/minutes-and-agendas.aspx

Item No Subject Page No

7 Scrutiny Chairmen (and Lead Member) Update and Cabinet Forward | 59 - 64
Plan

NOTES

Webcasting

Members of the Board are reminded that meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Performance
Board are Webcast on the Internet and will be stored electronically and accessible through the
Council's Website. Members of the public are informed that if they attend this meeting their
images and speech may be captured by the recording equipment used for the Webcast and
may also be stored electronically and accessible through the Council's Website.



AGENDA ITEM 5

"worcestershire
countycouncil

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE BOARD
28 APRIL 2023

DRAFT SCRUTINY REPORT: DEVELOPER-FUNDED
HIGHWAYS INFRASTRUCTURE

Summary

1. The Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board (OSPB) is asked to consider and
approve the attached draft scrutiny report on Developer-funded Highways
Infrastructure.

Background

2. During its performance monitoring process, the Council’s Environment Overview
and Scrutiny Panel (previously known as the Economy and Environment
Overview and Scrutiny Panel) expressed concern about the length of time taken
for developer-funded highways infrastructure, mainly housing development,
works to be completed. Specific areas of concern include the length of the overall
process and the time taken for the Council to approve planning submissions from
developers. The delay in completing developer-funded highways infrastructure
works impacts on local communities, road users and businesses, therefore this
area was identified as a priority for further scrutiny.

3. InJanuary 2021, the OSPB agreed that a Scrutiny Task Group led by Councillor
Alistair Adams should be set up to look at this area. Due to the Covid-19
pandemic, and subsequent impact on scrutiny priorities, this work commenced in
October 2021.

4. The Terms of Reference for the scrutiny exercise were to investigate:

e How to get developer-funded highways infrastructure built quicker for the
benefit of residents and road users

¢ How the Council can help ensure the planning conditions imposed on
developers to build key highways infrastructure by certain deadlines are met.

OSPB's Role

5. One of OSPB’s roles is to monitor the quality of scrutinies that are carried out to
ensure that scrutiny reports are robust, and evidence based, and that they follow
the terms of reference agreed by the OSPB.

6. To help with this, the OSPB has received regular verbal updates on the progress
of the scrutiny from the Lead Members of the Task Groups.

7. Once the Board is content, the Scrutiny Reports will be considered by Cabinet at
its meeting on 25 May 2023.

Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board — 28 April 2023
Page 1



Purpose of the Meeting

8. The OSPB is invited to consider, comment on and approve the attached Scrutiny
Report.

Supporting Information
Appendix 1 - Draft Scrutiny Report: Develop-Funded Highways Infrastructure
Contact Points

Samantha Morris, Interim Democratic Governance and Scrutiny Manager, 01905
844963. scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Background Papers

In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Assistant Director for Legal and
Governance) the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of
this report:

¢ Agenda and Minutes for Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board on
Wednesday, 6th January, 2021, 10.00 am - Worcestershire County Council
(moderngov.co.uk)

All agendas and minutes are available on the Council's website here

Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board — 28 April 2023

Page 2


mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=3822&Ver=4
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=3822&Ver=4
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=3822&Ver=4
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?Categories=

Worcestershire County Council Overview and Scrutiny

Scrutiny Report
Developer-Funded Highways
Infrastructure Scrutiny Task Group

% worcestershire
county council April 2023

Page 3



Worcestershire County Council Overview and Scrutiny
Scrutiny Task Group Membership

Alastair Adams
(Lead Member of the Task Group)

Matt Jenkins

Emma Stokes Richard Morris
(Until May 2022)

Officer support: Samantha Morris, Overview and Scrutiny Manager, Deborah Dale,
Member Engagement Officer, Emma James and Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny
Officers.

Further copies of this report are available from:
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
Website: www.worcestershire.gov.uk/scrutiny

Page 4


mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/scrutiny

Worcestershire County Council Overview and Scrutiny

Contents

Foreword

Background and Purpose of the Scrutiny Page 1
The Task Group’s approach Page 2
Recommendations Page 3
Findings Page 6
Conclusion Page 17
Appendices Page 18

Page 5



Worcestershire County Council Overview and Scrutiny

Foreword

In recent years Worcestershire has seen a lot of new development with thousands of new
houses being built each year across the County. However there has been concern from
residents and Councillors that the supporting Highways infrastructure such as junctions,
roundabouts, pedestrian crossings or traffic lights that were supposed to be built by the
developers as part of the planning have not been built or taken far too long to be built. The
Task Group set out to establish why.

An example was the roundabout on the junction EIm Rd/Offenham Rd in Evesham that was
eventually built in February 2017, but the process started in 2012 when planning
W/11/02836/RM was approved and stated the junction needed to be built before the 150t
dwelling was occupied. This planning condition was not met; the vast majority of the 508
new houses were built and occupied before the roundabout design was even approved.
This led to severe congestion at this junction for nearly 18 months adding 20-30 minutes to
journey times.

To build on the Worcestershire’s Highway Network, a developer needs to submit technical
drawings of the proposed infrastructure which Worcestershire County Council officers have
to approve; this is called “Technical Approval.”

Since 2016 the Economy & Environment Overview & Scrutiny Panel has been monitoring
the number of days to obtain Technical Approval and had several presentations from the
department that deals with them on 1st July 2016, 15" Sept 2017, and 1st Feb 2021. After
receiving the Q4 2020 performance monitoring figures, the panel flagged that the
performance of WCC section 278 in approving developers’ technical drawings was poor and
deteriorating; Days to Approve is going in the wrong direction — average time to approve
technical drawings was 325 days in 2019/20, (in 2018/19 it was 213 days)

As a result of these concerns, and the recognition that delays in completing key highways
infrastructure impacts on local communities, road users, and businesses, the Overview &
Scrutiny Performance Board agreed to set up a Scrutiny Task Group to investigate further
and to suggest recommendations for service improvements, as necessary.

The terms of reference state; -
e How to get developer-funded Highways Infrastructure built quicker for the benefit of
residents and road users?
e How can WCC help ensure the planning conditions imposed on developers to build
certain highways infrastructure by certain key times are met?

The Task Group acknowledge that a record number of new houses have been built over the
last 8 years and so the demand on our Technical Approval services has been high. The
Group recognise the professionalism and expertise of those working within Section 278/38
department and congratulate them on the improvements made since the Scrutiny Group
started.

Unfortunately, as the Task Group was formed, the arrival of Covid-19 meant that the work
had to be paused and did not actually commence until October 2021. Once it was able to
start work, the Task Group undertook a programme of evidence gathering by speaking
directly to Developers, Local Planning Authorities, key personnel within Worcestershire
Highways and at our Technical Consultants. Members were also able to speak to staff

Page 6



Worcestershire County Council Overview and Scrutiny

working in a similar Section 278/38 service in several other County Councils to compare
and contrast ways of working and be in a position to consider whether a different approach
to provision may lead to service improvements. As a result of these meetings, the Group
widened their research to include Contractors that worked for other Councils and could offer
a design and build service. The Group also interviewed a company that had built a software
package that Hampshire County Council were using to manage their Section 278/38
processes.

| wish to take this opportunity to thank each Task Group Member for the invaluable part they
played in bringing together a most comprehensive report. | would also like to thank all our
Scrutiny Officers, Deborah Dale, Samantha Morris, Emma James and Jo Weston for their
help and support with all aspects of the Task Groups work. | must give a special mention
and thanks to Sheena Jones for her guidance when we were writing our recommendations,
and to lan Bamforth who was parachuted into the s278/38 department when the Scrutiny
Review began and introduced some important measures. | must also express my gratitude
to all the witnesses who gave up their time to share their experiences of what is a complex
subject.

Councillor Alastair Adams
Lead Member of the Developer-Funded Highways Infrastructure Scrutiny Task Group

Page 7



Background and Purpose of the Scrutiny

1.

Developer-funded highways infrastructure is any infrastructure paid for by a developer
which involves permanent changes made to the public highways maintained by the
Council. A Section 278 agreement (or S278) is part of the Highways Act 1980 that
allows developers to enter into a legal agreement with the Local Highway Authority, in
this case the Council, to make alterations or improvements to a public highway, following
the grant of planning approval. Examples include housing or community developments
with new or changed access into the site (i.e., a bell mouth, roundabout, signalised
junction, right turn lane or a simple priority junction). A Section 38 Agreement (or S38) is
similar to a S278 but relates to highways and associated infrastructure within a
development which will be adopted by the council if it meets agreed standards. A S38
follows the same process as the S278 (see Appendix 4).

During its performance monitoring process, the Council’s Environment Overview and
Scrutiny (O&S) Panel (previously known as the Economy and Environment O&S Panel)
expressed concern about the length of time taken for developer-funded highways
infrastructure works to be completed. Specific areas of concern included the length of
the overall process and the time taken for the Council to approve technical drawings
from developers (as detailed in Step 4 of the 10 Stage Section 278/38 process shown in
Appendix 4). According to the Council’s website, detailing the overall S278 process
(Appendix 2) step 4 should take 8 weeks = 56 days but was taking on average 325 days
in 2019/20.

The delay in completing developer-funded highways infrastructure works impacts on
local communities, road users and businesses, therefore this area was identified as a
priority for further scrutiny. The Task Group’s main area of focus was housing
development delays as they were of public interest and of most concern for the Council.

In January 2021, the Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board (OSPB) agreed that a
Scrutiny Task Group should be set up to look at this area. Due to the Covid-19
pandemic, and subsequent impact on scrutiny priorities, this work started in October
2021.

The Terms of Reference for the scrutiny exercise were to investigate:

e How to get developer-funded highways infrastructure built quicker for the benefit of
residents and road users

e How the Council can help ensure the planning conditions imposed on developers to
build key highways infrastructure by certain deadlines are met.

Two teams in the Economy and Infrastructure Directorate are involved in the process to
sign off elements of a Section 278 agreement. The department names have been
changed since the Task Group review was started.

e The Highways Development Control Team (HDCT) was called Section 278 & 38
Development Control Team. This department deals with the process of approving
the design of the developer-funded infrastructure and seeing it is built correctly ie
Steps 3 to 10 of the 10 Stage Section 278/38 process

and

e The Transport Planning and Development Management Team (TPDMT) which was
called Development Control. This department is a consultee to all planning
1

Page 8



7.

applications on matters relating to highways so liaises with the 6 local planning
authorities (LPA’s) before planning is approved ie Stage 1 — 2 of the 10 Stage
Section 278/38 process.

The Task Group sought to clarify the roles and relationships of the two teams,
especially whether there was consistency in their approaches.

When the Task Group was formed, their first request was for a list of all section 278 and
38 agreements in the system. Consequently, a Master Spreadsheet was produced. The
Master Spreadsheet lists all 278/38 agreements at the 10 different steps in the 10-stage
process and colour codes them as per Appendix 4. There were 334 S278 and S38 at
various stages with 36, S278 at Technical Submission (step 4) and Registration (step
3). The Task Group found this very useful and was informed that the Master
Spreadsheet is now being used as a management tool to monitor progress with every
S278/38 application.

The original thought of the Task Group was to focus on the Step 4 “Technical Approval”
as that is where the delays seem to occur, and the Council’s Environment O&S Panel
had been monitoring the performance of this area with quarterly performance data
(Appendix 8). However, as the review progressed, other areas were identified that could
speed up the process of getting developer-funded infrastructure built quicker.

The Task Group’s approach

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

From the outset, it was recognised that the process of approving developer-funded
infrastructure is, by its nature, complicated. Applications to alter a public highway
involve planning and highway law, yet schemes need to work for residents and the local
area.

It was therefore important for the members of the Task Group to understand which
parts of the process were causing delays.

The Task Group has met with Officers from the Council and District Councils. The six
District Councils are the Local Planning Authorities (LPAs), who are the determining
body for granting planning permission. The Task Group also met with housing
developers, other county councils, a construction engineering company and the
Council’s current Highways Professional Services Technical Contractor (HPSTC).

During the initial overview of the Council’s role in developer-funded highways
infrastructure Schemes, the Task Group was advised in October 2021 that the
Directorate had started reviewing this area, with an aim to make improvements and that
progress was already being made. Appendix 5 shows the overview given to the Task
Group detailing the steps being taken at that time to improve the situation.

The Task Group has spent over 12 months interviewing witnesses and collecting data
and has identified a number of areas where it believes improvements could be made to
current arrangements in place in Worcestershire, which would reduce delays in
developer-funded infrastructure being built.

A full Schedule of the Task Group’s Activity is attached at Appendix 1.

Page 9



Recommendations

Culture and purpose

16. The Task Group felt that the S278 team had generally focused on being custodians of
the Council’s highways standards and would indicate when the developers’ drawings
did not meet these. The process that is followed is set out in Appendices 2 & 6 of the
report. A long iterative process can take place where drawings are rejected, revised and
resubmitted multiple times. The Task Group learned that the longest process had taken
12 submissions over 5 years, and the drawings are yet to be finally approved.

17. When the Task Group reviewed several older schemes with the officers, potential
solutions were identified by members of the officer team, but it was not clear whether
these were routinely proposed to the developer. The Task Group noted that in recent
months the officers have improved communications with developers and now most
developers have the telephone numbers of key members of staff. This has been
highlighted as a tangible improvement by the developers we spoke to. The following
recommendations seek to promote such improving practice to become embedded.

Recommendation 1: The Mission Statement of the Section 278 Team has to be clearly
defined as follows:

‘To be laser focused on outcomes and getting the highways infrastructure built as fast
as possible to the required highways standards for the benefit of residents and users of
the highways in Worcestershire’.

This should build on a constructive working relationship with developers, identifying
and addressing issues at an early stage whilst maintaining required highways
standards.

Recommendation 2: To prevent multiple submissions of drawings which delay the
building of infrastructure, a routine process be introduced whereby after 2 failed
submissions a senior manager in the Section 278 team meets with the developer with
the aim of resolving issues, aiming to achieve success with a maximum of 3
submissions of drawings.

Management and Oversight

18. At the start of the Task Group Review, the previous Highways and Public Rights of Way
Manager was seconded to the Section 278 Team to look at ways to improve the
process. He helped develop the ‘master spreadsheet’ which listed every S278/38
application and where they were in the 10-stage process. This manager retired in April
2022, and during the 12 months that the Task group was collecting evidence, they only
saw the master spreadsheet on 2 occasions. Evidence from other authorities showed
they had a similar management spreadsheet, and it was used dynamically through
weekly meetings to review progress and to drive performance. These recommendations
aim to reinforce the use of such tools to support a better management grip on
performance.

Recommendation 3: More robust management oversight of the Section 278/38 Team,
ensuring there is a performance management approach using appropriate management
tools. Examples of such tools might include:

3

Page 10



¢ Using KPI’'s monitored on a weekly or monthly basis to drive performance

¢ Using timescales set by the department with close monitoring and management
oversight of targets and deadlines, and

¢ Making better use of the master spreadsheet or similar management tools

Recommendation 4: Agree milestones with the Council, developers and any other
relevant partners. These milestones and dates should be agreed formally to ensure
everyone knows what is expected by whom and by when.

Milestones need to be agreed so that the planning conditions can be achieved and
monitored by using, for example, a Gantt chart. Feedback from talking to other councils
indicates that meetings to agree these milestones seems best practice and could take
place either by Zoom or Teams to include the Council, LPAs, developers and
developers’ consultants.

Recommendation 5: To ensure timescales are met, regular meetings to take place
between all parties throughout the process to keep progress on track towards the
milestones. Each job should be allocated to an accountable person who would be the
liaison point with all parties.

Recommendation 6: That the Strategic Director for Economy and Infrastructure
(Strategic Director) reviews the resources applied to the delivery of S278/38 agreements
to ensure the workload is managed effectively across the in-house team, and the
Council’s technical consultant contractor.

Planning

19. At the beginning of the Task Group, there were several examples mentioned where the
planning was approved with input from TPDMT but when the technical drawings were
submitted to HCDT, it was identified the infrastructure could not be built as outlined at
planning. This resulted in some developer-funded infrastructure never being built.
Various reasons were given, such as the difference between 2-dimension plans which
were used at planning, and 3-dimension plans required for construction. However, there
were other issues such as tracking for turning of lorries showed the junction was
dangerous, or there were land ownership issues which meant that the infrastructure
could not be built that way.

20. TPDMT have to deal with a very high number of requests from the 6 LPA’s, over 3000
per year. See below Planning Application numbers for 2020 and 2021

2020 2021
Bromsgrove 350 400
Malvern Hills 700 737
Redditch Borough 200 190
Worcester City 450 530
Wychavon District 1000 1100
Wyre Forest District 470 490

21. The LPA’s have their own design guides for developers, but sometimes this information
is contradictory to the County Council Streetwise Design Guide. For example, many
LPA’s encourage the planting of trees along the road verge, but for maintenance
purposes, this is currently not seen as a good thing by the Council.

Page 11



22. The following recommendations focus on the relationship between the 2 Council
departments, TPDMT who give planning advice to the 6 LPAs on highway matters, and
HCDT who approve the construction drawings

Recommendation 7: The Task Group recommends that the Strategic Director reviews
the management arrangements for the TPDMT and HCDT to maximise opportunities for
closer working between departments to achieve clarity and consistency. For example,
this could mean a senior manager over both departments, or closer training together, or
both departments working in the same office. There were examples from other councils
where individuals between these 2 teams were seconded to the other for 1 or 2 days a
week.

Recommendation 8: Planning Conditions (for example — a roundabout must be built
before the 150th house is occupied) must be acknowledged, met, and enforced. As most
of the planning conditions are proposed by the TPDMT in the first place, it should be
possible by closer working between the Council’s departments to achieve the deadlines
written in the planning conditions.

Recommendation 9: The wording provided by TPDMT to the LPA’s which are
subsequently used in the planning conditions should be stronger and more robust to
support the ability to enforce them.

Recommendation 10: On receipt of planning applications from the LPAs, TPDMT
should grade and allocate them for processing in accordance with the complexity of the
scheme, and where appropriate involve HCDT. However, the involvement of HCDT
should not slow down the process.

Recommendation 11: Some Councils have standard formats for developer-funded
Highways Infrastructure minor works planning applications. The Task Group
recommends this is explored for this Council so agreement with the LPAs can be
reached where it is not necessary for the Council to be a statutory consultee for certain
scenarios.

Recommendation 12: It is recommended that the Council’s TPDMT liaises with all LPAs
to request that only relevant applications are sent to the Council. The Task Group
discovered that there was an existing protocol where LPAs should not send planning
applications to the Council if there were no Highways implications. This protocol should
be enforced.

Recommendation 13: The Task Group recommends an agreement of standards for
Design Guides to be established between the Council and the 6 LPAs.

Performance Monitoring

Recommendation 14: The Environment O&S Panel should be supplied each quarter as
part of their Quarterly Performance Monitoring, with sufficient information to show how
each S278/38 application is performing, including at which stage they are at and
performance against the milestones.

Recommendation 15: The Task Group recommends that a focus group concentrates on
completing an urgent review of the backlog of schemes to identify, resolve and
complete them. During the Task Group’s work, members were made aware that out of
12 submissions some were outstanding by 1,386 days.

Page 12



Recommendation 16: The Cabinet Member with Responsibility for Highways and
Transport and the Strategic Director should be invited to Scrutiny on an annual basis to
provide an update on the recommendations agreed from this Scrutiny Report. The
Council’s OSPB should determine the most appropriate body to carry out this scrutiny
and accordingly, should be added to the appropriate Scrutiny work programme.

General Recommendations

Recommendation 17: During the scrutiny, the Task Group investigated a development
control software package which could automate and manage the process from start to
end and provide management information and reports, as necessary. However, the
Group strongly recommends that purchase of such software is not pursued until the
above recommendations 1 to 13 are fully implemented.

Recommendation 18: The Task Group recommends that if compliant with the current
contract, a review of the fee structure applied by the Council to its technical consultant
contractor is carried out, with a view to simplifying the process. At such time as the
contract is retendered, consideration be given to introduce specifications which
incentivise efficient finalisation of the drawings for schemes and expediate S278/38
applications.

Recommendation 19: The Task Group recommends that the Council considers the
development of a service level offer for Developers. For example, a choice of service;
Technical drawing approval only as currently, or an enhanced service such as design
and build. Another council offer a full service of design and build.

Recommendation 20: The Task Group recommends the local Councillor and residents
is/are kept informed of progress with S278/38 agreements and where necessary
involved as local knowledge can help resolve issues.

Recommendation 21: In order to minimise the risk of delays, that legal agreements are
prepared in parallel with the technical approval process.

Findings

23. The recommendations have been developed following an extensive scrutiny exercise
which has involved obtaining evidence and information from a wide range of
professionals and service users, the key findings of which are shown below.

The Technical Approval Process

24. The Task Group was keen to seek clarification on the process of a developer registering
a scheme, gaining technical approval, the technical submissions required and the
escalation process, when it was needed.

25. At the time of the Scrutiny, the Economy and Infrastructure Directorate was working on
an Improvement Plan to reduce delays in the completion of S278 schemes. The
Improvement Plan flowchart (attached at Appendix 2) detailed the Section 278 Technical
Review process. The Improvement Plan aimed to reduce the number of submissions
required, make communication more effective and incorporate greater pre-planning
advice. In Members’ view, success with the Improvement Plan requires proactive work
on behalf of the Council.

Page 13



26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

The Officer responsible for managing the HDCT explained that before taking on the role,
the S278 process had appeared unnecessarily complicated, however, the complexity
involved was now appreciated and it was highlighted that planning applications often
lacked detail in respect of S278 requirements, which created problems later.

The main steps of the Technical Approval process detailed in Appendix 4 are:
e Registration (Step 3)

e Technical Submission (Step 4)

e Technically Approved (Step 5)

The time taken for a developer to complete pre-registration forms could be weeks or
months, depending on what was involved, for example the need to approach a utility
company. The HDCT offered to liaise with developers at this first stage if there were
problems and staff were now more proactive in terms of communication and support to
avoid long email trails. As part of the Improvement Plan, a more formal escalation
process was being introduced, and local members were often involved in this.

The average technical approval duration for S278 was 256 calendar days in January
2021 and this reduced to 115 in December 2021. The average number of submissions
in the same time period reduced from four to three.

It is hoped that a jointly funded Planning Liaison Officer between the Council and
Wychavon and Malvern District Councils would help with liaison between developers
and planners. However, although this position has been funded, it is still vacant at the
time of writing this report.

The S278 Registration Form set out the formats accepted for the application of S278
Schemes e.g., AutoCAD, drawing file, which were standard and did not generate
problems. The first technical review is not undertaken until all information is received.
Once the submission was deemed acceptable it would be recommended for technical
approval.

Members of the Task Group thought that the abundance of information on the Council’s
website was overcomplicated and suggested that it would be helpful to have separate,
specific sections which could be sent to developers to address specific needs.

The technical review should take 4 weeks, and the developer would be contacted about
any identified problems. However, each time a submission failed, the new re-submission
would enter a new 4-week cycle, although a third fail would trigger a meeting with the
developer to understand what they were struggling to resolve. Generally, at this point it
would be clear what the problem was and speaking with the developer directly was the
best way forward.

When asked whether the developer could be advised about issues earlier in the
process, officers advised that this this did take place on occasion, but the sheer volume
of work made this difficult for every application when each officer may be dealing with
20-30 schemes. Also, piecemeal conversations made version control tricky when
discussion about one aspect of a submission often affected other aspects of it.

Relationships between developers and consultants may vary. Some developers may not
wish to consider issues where the plans they had submitted departed from the design
guides. This may have implications for further land or funding requirements. Technical
approval required a fastidious approach to avoid issues further down the line which may

only come to light through safety or maintenance issues once a scheme was complete.
7

Page 14



36. The HDCT Manager was keen for there to be greater input from the LPAs at the pre-
planning and planning stage, therefore more staffing resources were being introduced to
achieve this. Vacancy management was of concern as positions were hard to fill. Of
note, over 50% of submissions were for development in Malvern Hills and Wychavon
Districts.

37.The Council’'s HDCT dealt with the technical approval unless specialist knowledge of a
particular aspect was not available. It was estimated 30-35% of workload was passed to
the Professional Consultant firm for Technical Approval

38. The Government Design Manual and the Streetscape Design Guide dictated the design
of S278 Schemes. These guides were on the website, were national guidance and
something developers would be familiar with.

39. The Task Group asked about the demands on staff resources from the different stages
of development control processes. Information provided in January 2022 where there
were 138 schemes at pre-agreement and 334 post-agreement, indicated that 10% of
time was spent on administration, 26% on pre-planning/agreement (prior to signing the
legal agreement) and 64% on post-agreement, during construction.

40. The Council offered an option of early technical approval (ie pre-planning approval) if a
developer wanted to pay early for S278 approval and there had been positive feedback
about this option from developers on a working group who met with the Council.
Although there had been very little take-up to date, this choice was being promoted,
which the Task Group agreed was sensible.

41. The idea of incentives within the submission process would be explored as part of the
Directorate’s review and discussions with developers, although it would be important to
balance a potential effect on quality. This is reflected in Recommendation 18.

42. Regarding the budget for Development Control, during 2021/22 there was £888,000
expenditure, £722,000 income, resulting in £166,000 net budget requirement.

Fees

43. The Task Group considered the fees involved with S278 Scheme initial registration and
were advised that the registration fee was a £2,000 deposit, which was non-refundable
but was deducted at the point at which legal fees were paid. The process was designed
to be nil cost to the taxpayer, all being funded by the developer.

44. The developer would know how much fees would be at the technical approval stage as
this was the point when the amount of work involved was established, although officers
believed developers would have a fair idea in any case. Fees were based on a bond
scheme which was based on how much it would cost the Council to build at
commercially based rates (labour, materials etc.). For context, the bond for the scheme
at Copcut Rise Scheme in Wychavon was over £1million.

45. Fees were being reviewed to ensure the HDCT remained self-sufficient and were in line
with other councils. Proposed fees for 2022/23 included an increase of 0.5% on each
element, which was 1% lower than neighbouring areas, although caution was needed as
they may have different service models.

46. Developers sometimes challenged bond rates as they may have access to cheaper
building rates, for example, from a contractor who carried out the bulk of their work.

Page 15



Examples of Schemes of Work

47.The Task Group was keen to understand the processes involved in gaining technical
approval for a scheme and were able to follow the journey of four schemes in detail
between 2016 and 2020.

48. Examples of complex problems encountered were:

land ownership issues which in one case meant there was insufficient space for
turning from the housing development onto the main road. Technical approval had
not yet been met and a S278 agreement was not signed even though the houses
were now occupied. Residents were using the old site exit, which presented a
number of issues.

Heavy Goods Vehicle (HGV) access to a commercial site which took large HGVs,
however, this had not been considered with the planning consent. Additionally, the
developer had narrowed the space available before talking with the Council’s
Development Control officers

A pedestrian crossing for a housing development where technical approval was
given (after 4 submissions), but a S278 agreement was never signed as plans for
the crossing needed to be moved further down the lane, and during this process
various properties had claimed ownership of the land involved.

49. The Task Group learned that when planning permission had been granted by the LPAs,
there was very little leverage to work with developers to resolve S278 issues, as there

was nothing to incentivise them. This led to the difficult situation where houses had been

built, sold and occupied, with infrastructure problems remaining and with S278
agreements not complied with.

50. Often, even when LPAs had highlighted issues with schemes, planning consent had
been granted when the developer had appealed to the Planning Inspectorate. In such
cases the technical approval process was subsequently incredibly difficult as there was
no discretion to refuse the S278 application, no matter how poor the proposals were.

51.

52.

53.

54.

It was clear that communication with developers at the early stages of planning was vital
to ensure that when issues were identified, there was still leverage. Local Councillor
involvement at an early stage was also very important in order to capture local
knowledge about any potential issues in the area.

The Task Group was advised that part of the problem was that the planning process did
not run in parallel with the technical approval process. Planning approval generally took
9 weeks for a minor scheme and 12 weeks for a major scheme, which pushed a lot of
S278 issues to the future.

The Council’'s HCDT is a consultee on planning applications, however during the
process of comments being co-ordinated across the Council’s relevant teams, not all
comments related to S278 were necessarily included.

When asked what would help, earlier input from the HCDT to the planning process was
highlighted, whilst there was still leverage with planning. Intervention should ideally take
place at the end of the second submission of plans, and before the third. The Team was
trying to have a system where communication was ongoing but acknowledged that this
may need additional resources. A further suggestion for improvement was to delay
planning applications being submitted to the LPA Planning Committees by one or two
cycles, to give more time for issues to be discussed.

Page 16



55. The Task Group was shown the volume of drawings involved in any given scheme. It

56.

was explained that if one aspect was changed, the whole suite of drawings needed to be
updated, although this requirement was difficult as developers did not exercise the same
quality control, which was one of the biggest problems. Members suggested a complete
update was not necessary until the end of the process, however the point was made that
this could lead to schemes where specific aspects did not work.

Whilst accepting that some of the schemes examined were several years old, and that
some had been a trigger point to revisit and improve the process already, the
discussions with the HDCT Manager were helpful in identifying some of the key issues
and themes. These issues were then explored further in discussions with the TPDMT,
developers, other Councils and the LPAs.

The Council’s Comments on Planning Applications

57.The Task Group wanted to understand how the Council, in its role as the Highway

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

Authority, coordinates comments on planning applications before they are sent to the
LPA.

The Task Group learned about the considerable work involved in the process of
identifying schemes requiring Council comment. This appeared to be exacerbated by
current systems. Although there were service level agreements with all LPAs which
stated that the County Council should only be consulted if there was a potential impact
on the highway, due to staff shortages at LPAs, electronic links to all planning
applications were sent to the Council for review. Each application would then be opened
individually for an officer to verify whether they required Council input, even though
many would not.

The Task Group was pleased to hear that it was the Council’s intention to procure an E-
planning system which would ensure that only relevant applications come through to the
Council.

The number of applications received by the Council from the LPAs for comment varied
significantly and was estimated to be between 10-30 per week, per district area. Table 1
on page 15 shows total figures per year.

Permanent staffing was highlighted as a significant problem within the TPDMT. Several
attempts had been made to recruit a Principal Officer but had not been successful
despite an advertising campaign highlighting the wider benefits of working and living in
Worcestershire. There was a regional and national shortage of highways and
development engineers, and the Council was looking at other ways to fill vacancies in
this area, e.g., apprenticeships and graduate schemes, which had proved to be
successful in other areas such as highway maintenance. Whilst the recruitment process
continued, additional support was provided by the Council’s HPST contractor although
at a significantly higher cost.

It was estimated that 80% of minor schemes were responded to within the 21-day
deadline however for major schemes this would often take longer as more negotiation
and discussion was required, which developers understood.

Ideally staff would visit a site as part of their assessment of a scheme, however the
percentage of site visits had significantly reduced since the Covid-19 pandemic and
were estimated to be in the region of 25-30% (April 2022). In some instances, staff
would be very familiar with the area and online maps would be used instead.

10

Page 17



64.

65.

66.

67.

All applications for 6 or more homes would be circulated for consultation to the relevant
teams within the Council, including Development Control and others related to public
rights of way, accidents, highway maintenance etc. Smaller schemes would be
considered to see if they involved a new access onto the highway, and whether it was
appropriate and evidenced.

Larger applications would be accompanied by a transport assessment and would be
looked at for example to see whether the junction modelling should be reviewed.
Schemes involving major infrastructure would be considered by the Council’'s HPSTC
who work within the TPDMT as appropriate.

Following this, the TPDMT Manager would finalise the Council’s comments on the
application and may have to balance comments received from the various teams across
the Council, which at times may be in conflict — this was then forwarded to the relevant
Local Planning Authority.

The Council’s Officers must be guided by the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF). The TPDMT team also worked with all LPAs on their local plans and was
involved with the South Worcestershire Development Plan regarding strategic sites at
the local plan stage, as well as attending the Joint Advisory Panel and officer steering

group.

The Worcestershire Streetscape Design Guide

68.

69.

The Council’'s Design Guide compiled elements of various guides, including the
Department for Transport’s (DfT) Manual for Streets (1 and 2). Designing and modifying
non-trunk roads and busy streets - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) and the Design Manual for
Roads & Bridges (DMRB) relating to the rurality of Worcestershire.

It included everything a developer should include when submitting a planning
application e.g. road width, parking standards, specification for roads, ecology, type of
assessments required, acceptable vertical alignment etc. Worcestershire County
Council Streetscapes Design Guide (pdf)

Approval of Schemes

70.

71.

72.

73.

The TPDMT was involved at all stages of the planning process, including attending
most district council planning committee meetings.

Following approval by an LPA for larger schemes involving S106 (a legal agreement
between a local authority and developer, used to support transport infrastructure
improvements), the Council would enter into a legal agreement with the developer and
planning authority. A standard proforma is used, and included detail such as the
amount of contribution, what it was for, due dates etc.

Liaison continued between the TPDMT and the HDCT on any S278 issues to try and
ensure the scheme progressed correctly, until the point where the district council
contacted the Council for discharge of conditions, at which point the HDCT took over
until S278 compliance was achieved.

The Task Group was pleased to hear that there was closer liaison between the Council’s
HDCT and the TPDMT, which took place at the pre-application stage. More issues were
being addressed at an earlier stage and more S278s were being approved, resulting in

11

Page 18


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/manual-for-streets-2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/manual-for-streets-2
https://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-09/65405_streetscapes_design_guide_2022_ws04.pdf
https://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-09/65405_streetscapes_design_guide_2022_ws04.pdf

less submissions being required by the developer. Liaison and communication were key
to identifying and resolving any issues before schemes progressed.

Monitoring and Enforcement of Planning Conditions

74. When planning applications were considered and consent was given by an LPA, in 99%
of cases, the LPA retained any conditions suggested by the Council with the same
wording, which was based on analysis of the potential impact on the network, for
example, the access road to the development must be completed by the time the tenth
house was built.

75. Regarding enforcement of planning conditions, the Managers of both relevant Council
teams who met with the Task Group were clear that enforcement of planning conditions
was the responsibility of the relevant district council, since in granting planning
approval, the district council planning committees were endorsing the conditions
requested by the Council as appropriate and enforceable. Each district council had
enforcement teams to undertake this role.

76. It was hoped that the Joint Liaison Officer (for Wychavon and Malvern) would facilitate
closer liaison with the Council, including where conditions were applied in planning
approval.

77. From the discussions with the Council’s officers, as well as Task Group members’ own
experiences, Members of the Task Group identified that there were inconsistencies in
the monitoring and enforcement of conditions added to planning applications and that
this often only came to light when the local Councillor was alerted by a local resident.

78. The TPDMT was keen to promote to developers the message that whilst planning
applications may be approved in principle, it was likely that further modelling would be
required to meet requirements for a S278 Scheme. The Task Group felt the wording to
highlight planning conditions to developers should be more robust and has addressed
this in its recommendations.

79. The Manager of the TPDMT felt that the integrated system being worked on would help,
as planning applications and progress with S278 would be available in one system.

The role of the local Councillor

80. Local Members have the opportunity to comment on all planning applications within their
division. The Council valued local Councillor input on planning applications, however the
Council’s Officers who met with the Task Group reported that historically this had not
always been successful. A balanced approach was needed to ensure that Councillors
had the opportunity to influence within the confines of the planning application. Task
Group Members were keen to see that this happened routinely.

Discussions with Developers

81. The Task Group was grateful to have had the opportunity to meet with four housing
developers (Avant Homes, Bloor Homes, Persimmon Homes, and Taylor Wimpey) who
were currently building houses in Worcestershire. Most of these developers were also
part of a working group which met with the Manager of the HDCT. The Task Group
heard their views on the S278 planning application process, the challenges they faced
and any suggestions or opportunities for improvements.

12

Page 19



82. The main points arising from these discussions were:

e The developers’ relationship with the Council was good and had improved over
time, in particular communication which had moved away from a ‘silo’ approach.

e Earlier liaison would be beneficial, and an example was given about a Council
which managed everything in-house which enabled S278 approval to be obtained
quicker. The Task Group researched the approach of some other authorities who
had in-house design teams, although there was mixed success with this particular
model.

e There was a concern about the fee structure used in the Council’'s agreement with
its HPSTC. When drawings had been submitted three times, each further
submission would attract an additional fee. Developers suggested that any
drawings submitted three times should automatically be escalated to Director level
who should then liaise with the developer to identify and resolve the identified
issues and mitigate further delays.

e The Council’s fee structure and Service Level Agreement with its HPSTC should be
reviewed. Developers could only use the Council’s design consultants who were
often more expensive than competitors.

e Lead intimes as set out in Appendix 2 were frustrating, although meetings held
between Council officers, developers and the design consultants did enable good
discussions on planning issues and mutual solutions to be found.

e Developers suggested that they would prefer to use their own consultants or
choose from a list of Council approved consultants/contractors for the design and to
build the main infrastructure themselves. It was felt this would enable developers to
have more control and could reduce delays.

e Each LPA had a separate design guide and a standardised Worcestershire design
would be welcomed. This would also potentially reduce the number of repeat
submissions.

e Developers suggested that S278/38 approval process could be improved by having
a standardised legal agreement which could potentially speed up the process.

e Developers suggested a single point of contact would be helpful when escalation
was felt necessary for swift resolution of queries.

e An agreed timescale for responses to developers’ comments would be helpful in
terms of managing expectations and providing complete clarity.

Discussions with other Local Authorities

83. In order to understand how the Council’s approach and processes around developer-
funded infrastructure compared, the Task Group sought to meet with other local authorities.
Discussions with Officers from Staffordshire County Council (SCC) and Hampshire County
Council (HCC) took place whose approaches were different, and both meetings were very
useful.

84. The Task Group learnt that HCC, who dealt with all applications in house, had 22
engineers in Highways Development Team, 6/7 inspectors and a Monitoring officer
dealing with applications through a planning software.

85. SCC did contract out planning applications to a consultant and had less than 10
engineers dealing with applications. SCC’s strategic partner under the Infrastructure +
agreement conducts a technical review of application submissions from third parties, but
also offers a design & build service

86. SCC reported that in some cases when the construction engineering company (CEC)
received designs from the developer for S278 approval it would be passed to the SCC’s

13

Page 20



legal department to sign off and for works to commence. This process took
approximately 6 to 8 weeks. SCC are the local highway authority, and it is the SCC legal
dept that complete the agreements.

87. Although the process for dealing with applications may differ, both Councils had good
monitoring and governance in place, enabling any issues to be identified early in the
process and a system which clearly showed submissions and response times.

88. Issues regarding planning conditions were escalated to the Senior Management Team
to ensure any enforcement was applied and the message was clear that conditions were
to be complied with.

89. The Task Group’s discussion with HCC centered mainly around the planning software
they used, which is outlined in the ‘Planning Software’ section of this report.

90. Having learned that one local authority used a CEC to design and build its S278
schemes, the Task Group arranged to meet a company which provided this facility.

91. The CEC would receive designs from developers and arranged early involvement
meetings between the designer, developer, and Infrastructure Manager to discuss the
specifications of the design and how it was to be built. It was agreed that early
contractor involvement (ECI) was vital and reduced the time it took for drawings to be
approved.

92. Discussions identified that it was acceptable for developers to use their own contractors
for design and delivery which would be monitored by the contracts manager acting as a
conduit to the developers’ contractors.

93. The Task Group learnt that if the Council used their own contractors to build the
infrastructure, the project would automatically be adopted and there would be no wait for
a maintenance period.

94. However, speeding up the S278 process could incur increased costs for developers
and this extra expense could be viewed as a negative by developers.

95. With different levels of infrastructure development, one CEC confirmed that developers,
with more in-depth infrastructure developments, would come through the CEC and
where developers did not have the workforce, the CEC would then go on to build the
infrastructure.

96. The Task Group agreed that feedback from the developers suggested a developing
theme for categorising or grading the complicated nature of each project to
small/medium/large which would reduce the workload of the HDCT.

Discussions with Local Planning Authorities (LPASs)

97. The Task Group met with the Planning Officers from Worcester City Council,
Bromsgrove District Council, Redditch Borough Council, Wychavon District Council,
Malvern Hills District Council and Wyre Forest District Council (the six Local Planning
Authorities in Worcestershire). These meetings gave the opportunity to talk through the
issues and themes which had emerged, including systems for requesting comments
from the Council, and concerns around enforcement of planning conditions.

14

Page 21



98. Some LPAs advised that enforcement of planning conditions was the responsibility of
the LPA Highways Officers and developers to resolve. The level of formality applied by
LPAs varied according to each individual case.

99. Currently, the Council informed each LPA which condition should be applied and in their
discussions with the Task Group, the LPA accepted that, but did not always enforce
against it, depending on the circumstances.

100. The Task Group believes that improved enforcement of planning protocols and
conditions should be in place, as not all conditions were being monitored by the LPA
unless they were flagged to indicate a delivery time slippage. This is reflected in the Task
Group’s recommendations.

Planning Application Numbers

101. The table below shows the total number of planning applications received by each
district council over a two-year period. (Note- These are the number of planning
applications that have been consulted on and comments provided)

Table 1.

2020 | 2021

Bromsgrove District Council 350 400
Malvern Hills District Council | 700 737

Redditch Borough Council 200 190
Worcester City Council 450 530
Wychavon District Council 1000 | 1100

Wyre Forest District Council 470 490

Table 2. Standalone S278 applications received by year

District 2020 2021 2022 Total
Bromsgrove 2 5 6 13
Malvern 7 6 3 16
Hills
Redditch 4 4 3 11
Borough
Worcester 6 5 3 14
City
Wychavon 3 4 6 13
District
Wyre 7 2 6 15
Forest
District
Total 29 26 27 82

15

Page 22



Planning Software

102.

103.

104.

105.

106.

The Task Group was advised that the Council is currently going through a process for
procurement and implementation of software.

As part of its research, the Task Group looked at what software was being used by
other councils. This focused on one specific planning software, which had been used
for approximately 6 years by two LPAs in Worcestershire.

The Task Group received a demonstration of the planning software, during which the
following advantages were highlighted:

e 24 Shire Councils are currently using the software
This planning software can be tailored to different authorities’ requirements
The back-office system can be linked to GIS mapping providing the planning
record, details on consultation, the road agreement application and response
outline

e Other additional packages are available such as road adoption packages
RAG (Red/Amber/Green) ratings used for milestones
Pre-approval applications can be viewed and linked to the Local Planning
Authority register so all documents submitted are trackable.

Following the planning software demonstration, the Task Group talked to other
authorities who were using it and met with a local authority who had been using this
planning software for about 9 months, at the date of the meeting, to hear their views.
The main points made during this discussion were:

Everything comes in as one submission and is entered onto a blank database
Allowed for full integration

No need to sense check information coming in

A ‘one stop shop’ for developers

Ability to have multiple applications

When an application was received, developers were prompted to submit all of the
required information and could not progress to the next stage until it was provided
The System had triggers and auto alerts should anything on the application be
altered

Applications could be linked to show the planning history for a site as it develops
All posted communication could be viewed as well as documents, certificates etc.
The Database was a central point where everything was stored

It was integrated with GIS mapping so checks could be made to see if a road had
been adopted etc. with key dates

e Less complaints

e Provided audit trail of information so it was easy to track if anything was missing.

The Task Group felt that software capable of supporting the S278 process was a
useful tool in the planning process but acknowledged that part of the success
experienced by the Council using it was having a full-time officer to monitor the system
daily and who was technically very capable with computers and was a qualified
highways engineer.

16

Page 23



Conclusion

107.

108.

Over the course of this review, the Task Group has been very pleased to hear of the
progress being made with processing s278/38’s. There seemed to be more liaison
across the teams within the Council and with developers and our technical
consultants. Also the number of days to approve technical submissions was reducing
as was the number of submissions of drawings. As of December 2022, the 27 Section
278’s submitted in the year 2021/22 and which have reached approval took on
average 278 days and 5 submissions. The most recent schemes are averaging 90
days and 3 submissions. However there is still a lot more work to clear the old
schemes and to improve the speed of approving the S38’s which on average still took
327 days.

Members welcomed the discussions which took place with housing developers, LPAs,
other councils and companies involved in providing services. The Council should
continue to liaise with developers/LPAs/other councils to share best practice and to
continue to find ways to improve the Council’s services.

17

Page 24



Appendix 1 — Schedule of Activity

Date

Event

21 October 2021

Task Group meeting to discuss the S278 process, key issues and the
Directorates Review with the Council’s Senior Programme Manager.

8 December 2021

Task Group meeting to discuss the Directorates Review and the
technical Approval Process with the Senior Programme Manager and
Development Control Manager, S278/38.

18 January 2022

Task Group meeting to review of information provided.

16 February 2022

Task Group meeting to discuss Schemes of Work with the
Development Control Manager.

5 April 2022

Task Group meeting to discuss the Planning process including
coordinating comments on planning applications with the Council’s
Transport Policy and Strategy Team Leader and the Council’s Senior
Programme Manager.

12 April 2022

Task Group meeting to hear the views of the Technical Directors of
Avant Homes and Taylor Wimpey on the S278 process.

20 April 2022

Task Group meeting to hear the views of the Technical Director,
Persimmon Homes (South Midlands) on the S278 process.

27 April 2022

Task Group meeting to hear the views of the Design and Technical
Director, Bloor Homes Western on the S278 process.

6 May 2022

Task Group meeting with a specialist highways services company.

13 May 2022

Task Group discussion of emerging themes.

18 May 2022

Task Group meeting to hear the views of the Principal Planning Officers
of Bromsgrove District Council and Redditch Borough Council and
Planning Manager at Wyre Forest District Council

27 May 2022

Task Group meeting to hear with the views of the Associate Director of
the Council’s Highways Professional Services Contractor and the
Council’s Development Control Manager

15 July 2022

Task Group meeting with the Head of Sustainable Development,
Highways and Built County and Senior Engineer, Infrastructure,
Sustainable Development Team - Highways and Built County from
Staffordshire County Council

18 August 2022

Task Group meeting to hear the views of the Area Planning Officer
(North) Wychavon/Malvern Hills District Councils

25 August 2022

Task Group discussion about recommendations

18

Page 25




31 August 2022 Task Group meeting with the Commercial Director, Software Company

6 September 2022 | Task Group discussion about recommendations

13 September 2022 | Demonstration of planning software with Group Engineer - Highway
Development Agreements, Hampshire County Council

23 November 2022 | Task Group discussion about recommendations

19

Page 26




S

Overall Section 278
> Technical Review Process

* If all parties ensure their
timescales are upheld a
single cycle of this process
could take little as 8 weeks.

* Process relies on the
Designer submitting details
that are suitable for
approval.

)2 dbed

[ 'worcestershire

=='county council

Upon Developer payment, WCC Chent Officer notifies

Undertake first technical review of all submitted details

auditor to commence the Technical Review
1 week

C

4 vieeks

DesignerDevelopar to review comments and respond.

Unacceptatie
review to D g
'WCC Client Officer cc'd in.
Offer a meeting with Developer to review comments.

Update drawings and issue to Audit Team

Acceptable

¢

4 weeks.

!

Undertake second technical review of all submitted
details

C

4 wiesks

}_

Designer/Developer to review comments and respond.

I
Urasoceptatie
A4

Is leted review to D igner vith
'WCC Client officer cc'd in. Auditor offer dates for
‘Handholding” session to discuss all open comments

‘Handholding’ meeting held between Auditor and
Designer/Developer

}

Update drawings and issue fo Audit Team

le—recemiatie—(C

Issue ission to pier review of
submission takes

Furmdeﬂingﬂm%::m

1 week

Undertake technical review of all submitted details
4 weeks

Update drawings and issue to Audit Team
( 4 weeks
1
Issue review fo
WCC Chient officer oc'd in. Mlﬂoﬂudmh
“Handholding' session to discuss all open comments
t
Unacceptabie

|
Undertake technical review of all submitted details
4 wesks. D]

le—Acoeptabi _(

Upon Dex vebperpaymenl Client Officer commissions audit
continue the Technical Review

Acceptable =

C

4 weeks

)

Undertake third technical review of all submitted detads

}

C

4 weeks

De»eboummakgpaymunmwcc and submit revised
submissions

=

C 2 weeks D]
1
WCC to Developer of difficulties technical
npmrl narnsonahlenmescdcl gthemd
‘additional fees required in order to complete the
mlmmss nd offering them additional
support for t submissions.
1 week
in uevulmmesmmsslns after three

technical reviews audit team will escalate this to the WCC
cnemolﬁoe (Shpl&eulnm] Audit Team will provide
itonal fees to complete the

techni Iﬁl!ll!wpmﬂii
Audit team will issue completed review to
Designer with WCC Client officer oc'd in

place.
ceeptable——gp Recommend the scheme for approval Technical Approval

APPENDIX 2

WCC Client Officer notifies Developer of
scheme acceptance, listing all agreed
ing bond and

drawings.

C = )

!

WCC Clent Office tissue instruction to WCC
Legal Department to commence drafting
S278/538 Legal Agresment

1week

[} Unaccepiabie

Designer/Developer to review comments and respond.




Appendix 3 - Documents received by the Task Group

Document

Service Level Agreement (SLA) for Highways and Infrastructure Services —
Birmingham City Council

Planning Performance Agreements - Good Practice Advice and FCB — Wychavon
District Council

Financials for the S278 Department

Master Spreadsheet containing the performance data for scheme completions for
last 8 quarters

Performance Indicators with the Council’s Contractor

Highways Work Agreements Flowchart - Staffordshire County Council

Highways Development Agreement Guidance — Hampshire County Council

Developer Portal User Guide — a guide detailing how to use Developer Portal to
make a Section 278/S38 application to Hampshire County Council

planning software Mastergov User Guide for the Road Agreements (Hampshire
County Council)

Worcestershire County Council Design Guide Nov 2020

Streetscape Design Guide 2022 (Council website)

Blank S106 Instructions

Ten Point Improvement Plan — Environment and Infrastructure Directorate’s Plan to
improve the development control process

Flowcharts of technical approval and streetlighting approval processes

Developer Working Group - comments on changes and improvements being
progressed

Guidance for Section 278 agreement application (Council website)

Page 28



Appendix 4 — The 10 stages of Section 278/38

Status Definitions:

Number Status Definition

Documents received but planning consent not granted. | presume there will be cccasions when we
1 Preplanning have not received documents, but are in discussions with a developer. This may also include Early
Technical Assessment.

2 Planning Planning consent granted.

Application submitted but insufficient information provided to enable technical checking to
COmmence.

3 Registration

At least one ar more technical submission has been made by the developer and it has not yet had

4 Technical submission )
technical approval.

5 It has now received TA, but a Legal Agreement is not in place.
The develaper is now pursuing the legal agreement, but until the dates for it being completed are on
1 Legal agreement 5278 the register, it is not completed. The 5278 agreement must be completed before commencement of
any construction work on site.
7 Works taking place on the sitefexisting public highway associated with the development.
The developer is now pursuing the legal agreement, but until the dates for it being completed are on
a the register, it is not completed. The 538 agreement may be completed during/after construction to
help secure new road adoption by the highway authority where appropriate.
9 Maintenance Issuing of the PCC (Provisional Certificate) will commence the 12/36-month maintenance period.
10 The issuing of the FCC (Final Certificate) signifies (amongst other things) WCC's adoption of the
F 5278/38 Works, but until the dates for it being completed are on the register, it is not completed.

Page 29



Appendix 5

Scrutiny Task Group — Developer Funded Infrastructure, Section 278/38 briefing summary
October 2021.

1. What is Developer Funded Highways Infrastructure?
Developer Funded Highways Infrastructure, relates to the Section 278 and Section 38 Agreements
function of the County Council.

A section 278 agreement (or s278) is a section of the Highways Act 1980 that allows developers to
enter into a legal agreement with the Council (as the Highway Authority) to make permanent
alterations or improvements to a public highway, as part of a planning approval. Examples include
new or changed access into a development site (i.e. a bell mouth, roundabout, signalised junction,
right turn lane or a simple priority junction).

A section 38 agreement (or s38) is similar to a s278, but relates to highways and associated
infrastructure within a development, which may be adopted if it meets agreed standards.

2. Process overview

The primary role of the S278/S38 Development Control Team is to provide detailed assessment of
developer proposals and designs, either for works on the existing publicly maintained highway
(section 278’s) or for new highways to be offered for adoption by the Local Highway Authority (section
38’s) and ensure these designs meet our required specification, prepare drawings for inclusion with
the legal agreement and have oversight of the implementation of the works, in relation to ensuring
they are built in accordance with the agreed drawings and to the correct specification.

The Worcestershire County Council (WCC) Technical Approval process requires the developer to
demonstrate through technical submissions that the designed highways they are offering for adoption
meet our specification. Once the design of the highways has been technically approved, the
developer enters into a legal agreement with WCC, which includes the provision of a bond for the
value of the works (calculated by WCC), that enables WCC to complete the works should the
developer fail to meet the obligations contained within the agreement.

Both s38 and s278 legal agreements include the issue of two certificates, firstly the Provisional
Certificate of Completion (PCC) which is issued once the works as described within the agreement
have been completed to the required specification, which enables the maintenance period to
commence and the value of the bond to be reduced by 50%. Second is the Final Certificate of
Completion (FCC) which is issued following successful completion of the maintenance period, which
is normally specified as a minimum of 12 months. A key issue will be the remediation (fixing) of any
defects that have occurred over the maintenance period. Prior to the issue of the FCC, the developer
remains responsible for the maintenance of the highways as described within the agreement and
those highways are effectively privately controlled. Upon the issue of the FCC, the highways within
the agreement become publicly maintained and the remaining bond value is returned to the
developer.

3. Key issues
There are several issues that have been identified, including:

¢ The timescales for the completion of the Technical Approval process for section 278/38’s.
The number of submissions it takes to achieve Technical Approval.
Effective communication and understanding with the Developer and timeliness therein.
The timescales for the completion of the streetlighting Technical Approval.
Pre-planning advice.

4. What the Directorate is working on?

Page 30



The Economy & Infrastructure Directorate is undertaking a review of the section 278/38 function in
key areas. Not least to address the issues identified. The purpose of the review is:

‘To review key processes, systems and approaches to working as necessary, within the
Section 278/38 Development Control area in relation to both WCC, Developer & other key
parties activity. This is to ensure that key agreed identified areas are working effectively and
delivering required outputs and outcomes in a reasonable timescale’.

Key activity areas of the review and progress so far includes:

Establish a working group with Developers and a protocol for working together, including
expectations & requirements of both parties. Working group in place with four Developers as
members of the working group. ltems being covered include the review of the streetlighting design
process, Technical approval process and the four submissions escalation process, early planning
engagement and a joint protocol for working effectively together.

To ensure an effective ‘Technical Approval Pipeline System’ is in place with agreed
timescales and key performance measures, requirements and expectations for both WCC
& Developers, in relation to the Section 278/38 Development Control technical approval
process and associated matters. Process has been reviewed and the next step is to implement
key elements of the revised process. Alongside this update the schemes register & ensure
monthly performance figures are then produced and reviewed to provide more focus on progress
and any key issues/blockers.

To put in place a clear 4 stage system and escalation/review process at stage 4, when key
items are deemed to not be progressing at an adequate pace. Included as a part of the
process, discussed and supported at the Developers Working Group. Included as a part of the
outline protocol.

To review the level of officer and other resource provision, to ensure it is sufficient to
manage and throughput the identified number of developments and associated workload.
Resource plan agreed to ensure Section 278/38 team have adequate officer capacity to deal with
the number of Developments involving section 278/38 activity. Additional contractor resource
secured in the short/medium term and DC Engineer posts in process of being filled. In addition,
we have created a joint officer post in partnership with Wychavon and Malvern Hills District
Council’s, to help coordinate progress on DC schemes within the two districts.

To review the Streetscape Design Guide to ensure it further enables the front-end process
and effective joint working with Developers. Internal review of Design guide underway. To be
shared with the Developers Working Group to take on board their views regarding effectiveness
and any other key matters from their perspective.

To review the Streetlighting technical approval process & put in place agreed timescales
and performance measures. Review of Streetlighting Technical Approval process completed
and using this as a model for the wider Technical approval process. Monthly performance figures
now being produced and meeting majority of timescale targets. Further work to escalate issues if
developer does not meet agreed timescales.

To review the IT systems for the management and communication with Developers to
ensure these are effective in providing for good communication and management of
Section 278/38 Development Control activity. In progress, have identified a Local Authority
who have a good system in place and meeting held to review effectiveness of this system.
Business case approved by Corporate Board.

To work with the Planning Development Management Team on further improving effective
early engagement in planning applications with Developers & Planning Authorities. Already

4

Page 31



underway on a number of schemes. Resource plan, once implemented, will enable more early
engagement with Developers and Planning Authorities.

e To look at a selection of other Highways Authorities Section 278/38 DC functions, with a
view to understanding their arrangements/processes and considering opportunities for
learning and improvement of WCC processes and systems where appropriate, both ways.
Liaison with Midlands Highways Alliance +, regarding a number of other Highways Authorities
Development Control functions is underway.

Senior Programme Manager
15.10.21

Page 32



Appendix 6

The suggested Technical Approval procedures as proposed as part of the Economy &
Infrastructure Directorate’s review

Note; the review of the technical drawings can be done in house by WCC staff or outsourced to the
Council’s Technical Consultants

i) undertake first technical review of all submitted details. If unacceptable,
competed review issued to Developer/designer with WCC client officer copied
in. Meeting offered to Designer/developer to review comments

ii) Designer/developer to review comments and respond. Update drawings and
issue to Audit team

iii) Undertake second technical review of all submitted details. Issue completed
review to Developer/Designer with WCC client copied in. Auditor offer dates
for ‘handholding’ session to discuss all open comments

iv) Designer/Developer review comments and respond. Update drawings and
issue to Audit Team

V) undertake third technical review of all submitted details. If unacceptable, after
three technical reviews the audit team escalate to the WCC client officer
(stage 4 escalation). WCC notify Developer of difficulties in approval within a
reasonable timescale. Inform them of additional fees required to complete the
technical review process and offering them additional support

Vi) Developer to make payment to WCC and submit revised submissions. Client
officer commissions audit team to continue the technical review

Vii) undertake technical review of all submitted details. Issue completed review to
Developer/Designer with WCC client copied in. Auditor offer dates for
‘handholding’ session to discuss all open comments.

viii)  Designer/Developer review comments and respond. Update drawings and
issue to Audit Team

iX) undertake technical review of all submitted details.

X) issue acceptable submission to peer review. Recommend scheme for
technical approval, all details recorded. WCC Client Officer notifies Developer
of scheme acceptance, listing all agreed drawings, confirming bond and
outstanding fees. WCC Client officer issues instructions to WCC legal team to
begin drafting S278/38 legal agreement

Page 33



Appendix 7
Link below to a copy of the current section 278 Agreement Application Form

https://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-
09/sec. 278 application form 2020 a.pdf

Page 34


https://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-09/sec._278_application_form_2020_a.pdf
https://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-09/sec._278_application_form_2020_a.pdf

Appendix 8

Summary from the Master Spreadsheet showing the number of Section 278 & 38’s
days to approve and the number of submissions of drawings

Technical Submissions/Days To Approve
(WCC Section 278s approved in financial years 2016/2017 to 2022/2023)

1,400 °
L ]
1,200
o ° Approved in 16/17
= Approvedin 17/18
= Hon s Approved in 18/19
o
2 Approved in 20/21
‘:§ 200 % $ . 4 Approved in 21/22
- 8 = ° > Approved in 22/23
AN I
© @ ®
[=] ° ® & - - ™
_— 400 - ™ :
: . 2
° ) m =
200 S ! 8 s ° .
1§ ¢ ‘
0 :
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13
as at 31stDecember 2022 Number of Technical Submissions [
./--
Technical Submissions/Days To Approve
(WCC Section 38s approvedin financial years 2016/2017 to 2022/2023)
2.000
1,800 Approved in 16/17
Approvedin 17/18
1,600 Approved in 18/19
@
2 1,400 Approved in 20/21
= Approved in 21/22
g_ 1,200 ] Approved in 22/23
2| 1,000 . °
w [ ]
= 800 e
o L
m— 600 :
L ] .
400 % 5 ® . . o
. ] e -
200 ] ¢
* ' | ]
0] - r
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13
as at 31stDecember 2022 Number of Technical Submissions |

\_

Page 35




This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 6

"worcestershire

countycouncil

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE BOARD
28 APRIL 2023

REFRESH OF THE SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME

Summary

1.

The Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board (OSPB) is asked to consider the
Scrutiny Work Programme for 2023/24.

Developing a Scrutiny Work Programme

2.

The current 2022/23 Scrutiny Work Programme was agreed at Council on 14 July
2022. It is now timely for the work programme to be refreshed for the coming
year. The refreshed work programme will be considered by full Council on 18
May 2023.

In preparation for this meeting, Panel Chairmen have consulted with their
Scrutiny Panels, relevant Cabinet Members with Responsibility and Directors on
any amendments they would like to make to their work programme. Draft Work
Programmes for the Board, Panels and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
(HOSC) are attached at Appendix 1.

Members are reminded that the Council's Constitution includes a requirement for
the OSPB (using the Panels where appropriate) to receive, comment and advise
on the Council's policy framework.

The Board is also asked to consider whether, in addition to the Policy Framework
and standing items it considers, there are any other issues that should be added to
its Work Programme.

In determining its Scrutiny Work Programme, the Board needs to consider a
number of points.

Issues suitable for scrutiny

7. The Board has agreed to use the following criteria to help determine its scrutiny

programme. A topic does not need to meet all of these criteria in order to be
scrutinised, but they are intended as a guide for prioritisation.

Is the issue a priority area for the Council?

Is it a key issue for local people?

Will it be practicable to implement the outcomes of the scrutiny?
Are improvements for local people likely?

Is there any evidence to it is a poor performing service?

Will it result in improvements to the way the Council operates?
Is it related to new Government guidance or legislation?

Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board — 28 April 2023

Page 37



8. In considering the proposed work programme Members should also aim for it to
be:

o balanced, in terms of some topics being of longer duration and some being
suitable for shorter study

o Mixed in terms of covering different topics/directorates

o Not so onerous that there is no flexibility and room left for smaller,
additional items such as Call-ins, to be added in at a later time if the OSPB
regards it as a priority, and

o Taking account of the resources available to support scrutiny.

Purpose of the Meeting
9. The Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board (OSPB) is asked to:
e consider the reports from Panel Chairmen on potential work programme
topics;
e consider whether there are any issues which should be added to the OSPB's
Work Programme;
e determine the Scrutiny Work Programme for 2023/24 to be considered by
full Council.
Supporting Information
Appendix 1: Draft 2023/24 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme
Contact Point for this Report

Samantha Morris, Interim Democratic Governance and Scrutiny Manager - Tel: 01905
844963 Email: simorris@worcestershire.gov.uk

Background Papers

In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Assistant Director for Legal and
Governance) the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of
this report:
e Agenda and Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board 19 June
2017
e The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to
Information) (England) Regulations 2012

All agendas and minutes are available on the Council's website.

Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board — 28 April 2023
Page 38


mailto:sjmorris@worcestershire.gov.uk
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/cms/democratic-services/minutes-and-agendas.aspx

6 abed

Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board — 2023/24 Work Programme

Date of Meeting

Issue for Scrutiny

Date of Last Report

Notes/Follow-up Action

28 April 2023

Draft Scrutiny Report: Developer-Funded
Highways Infrastructure and Section 278
Technical Approval

19 November 2020

Task Group started October 2021

Review of the Overview and Scrutiny Work
Programme

30 September 2021
29 June 2022

To be endorsed by Council in
May 2023

Scrutiny Chairmen (and Lead Member) Update,
Work Programme and Cabinet Forward Plan

26 June 2023

Update on the 2022-27 Corporate Plan

Update on the relocation of Redditch Library

25 October 2022

Scrutiny Chairmen (and Lead Member) Update,
Work Programme and Cabinet Forward Plan

26 July 2023

Scrutiny Chairmen (and Lead Member) Update,
Work Programme and Cabinet Forward Plan

6 September 2023

Update on the progress of the
recommendations from the Child and
Adolescent Mental Health Services Scrutiny

27 February 2020

Considered by Cabinet on 30
March 2023 and the
Herefordshire and Worcestershire
Integrated Care Board

Annual Update from Worcestershire Local
Enterprise Partnership (LEP)

Scrutiny Chairmen (and Lead Member) Update,
Work Programme and Cabinet Forward Plan

19 October 2023

Annual Crime and Disorder Meeting

20 October 2022




Ot abed

Date of Meeting Agenda Item(s) Date of Last Notes/Follow-up
Report Action
Possible Future
Items
TBC Income Generation Suggested at 17 March 2020
meeting
TBC Crime and Disorder — Suggested at 30 September 2021
Safety of Worcestershire Parks and open Meeting
spaces
TBC Update on the Drugs and Alcohol Strategy 30 January 2023
TBC Draft Scrutiny Report: Education, Health and

Care Plans (EHCPs)

Standing Items

Each meeting

Scrutiny Chairmen (and Lead Member) Update,
Work Programme and Cabinet Forward Plan
(including Quarterly Performance and In-Year
Budget Monitoring - Feedback from Scrutiny
Panels where appropriate)

Each meeting

November — Budget Scrutiny Annually

January (as

appropriate)

April Review of Overview and Scrutiny Work Annually To be endorsed by Council in
Programme May

October Annual Crime and Disorder Meeting 20 October 2022

September Annual Update from Worcestershire Local 29 September 2022

Enterprise Partnership (LEP)




T obed

Date of Meeting

Agenda Item(s)

Date of Last
Report

Notes/Follow-up
Action

As necessary

Call-ins

As necessary

Commissioning work for Scrutiny Panels

As necessary

Establishing Scrutiny Task Groups (agreeing
Terms of reference and Reports)

As necessary

Advising on Council’s Policy Framework ie
Sustainable Community Strategy (if any),
Corporate Plan, Children and Young People's
Plan, Local Transport Plan, Youth Justice Plan,
'Act Local in Worcestershire' framework, such
other plans and strategies as required by law to
form part of the Policy Framework




This page is intentionally left blank



¢ obed

SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24

Adult Care and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Date of Meeting Issue for Scrutiny Date of Last Report | Notes/Follow-up Action

22 May 2023 The Council’s Adult Services Replacement Care Offer
(previously known as respite)
Independence Focussed Domiciliary Care Service in Directorate Suggestion February
Worcestershire 2022

Performance (Q4 January to March) and In-Year
Budget Monitoring

6 July 2023 - Joint ¢ All Age Disability (0-25) Service (ongoing 11 January 2021
with Children and Scrutiny of the transformation of the Service)
Families Overview e Learning Disability Strategy 15 November 2021
and SCFUtiny Panel e Autism Strategy
e Carers Strategy

14 July 2023 Performance (Q4 January to March) and In-Year

Budget Monitoring

Update on Better Care Fund 23 January 2023

The role and cost benefit of Assistive Technology in 14 January 2022

Care Planning

13 October 2023 Performance (Q1 April to June) and In-Year Budget
Monitoring

5 December 2023 Performance (Q2 July to September) and In-Year
Budget Monitoring

January 2024 Scrutiny of 2024/25 Budget

March 2024 Performance (Q3 October to December) and In-Year
Budget Monitoring




vt abed

Possible Future
Items

TBC Update on The Role of Adult Social Care in Complex 7 November 2022
Hospital Patient Discharges 18 July 2022
TBC NHS Continuing Heath Care (CHC), including any Directorate Suggestion July 2022
funding implications
TBC How the Council works with Carers Panel suggestion 8 July 2021
TBC The role and cost benefit of Assistive Technology in Discussed at the 14 January 2022
Care Planning meeting
TBC Update on Direct Payments Added at the 20 May 2022 Meeting
TBC Staff Vacancies and retention Requested at 28 September 2022
meeting
TBC Liberty Protection Safeguards — awaiting national Panel member suggestion March
guidance on implementation 2022
TBC How to access Adult Social Care Healthwatch Worcestershire
suggestion March 2023
TBC Quality of Care Homes in Worcestershire Healthwatch Worcestershire
suggestion March 2023
TBC — requires Care market for older adults (care home and domiciliary Panel suggestion 24 March 2023
scoping care meeting
Standing Items
Annual Safeguarding Adults Annual Update 28 January 2021 Annual Update from Worcestershire
15 March 2022 Safeguarding Adults Board
24 March 2023
Annual Compliments and Complaints for Adult Services 15 November 2021 Annual Report

28 September 2022

Quarterly

Performance and In-Year Budget Monitoring




G obed

SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24

Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Date of Meeting

Issue for Scrutiny

Date of Last Report

Notes/Follow-up Action

24 May 2023

Update on GET SAFE and GET THERE

Requested by Panel 10 May 2022

Worcestershire Children First Independent
Fostering Service Ofsted Inspection

23 February 2022

Inspection took place February 2023

Update on the Special Educational Needs and
Disabilities (SEND) Accelerated Progress Plan

3 November 2022

SEND Strategy

6 July 2023

All Age Disability (0-25) Service (ongoing
Scrutiny of the transformation of the Service)
All Age Autism strategy

All Age Learning Disability Strategy

All Age Carers Strategy

11 January 2022

Adult Care and Wellbeing O&S Panel
members to be invited

7 July 2023

WSCP Annual Safeguarding Report

July 2022

Children’s Social Care — The Government’s
Implementation Strategy and WCF Business
Plan

Chairman agreed items be added to
Work Programme - February 2023.

Performance (Q4 January - March) and Year
End Budget Monitoring

27 September 2023

Home to School Transport Review outcome

Chairman agreed item be added to
Work Programme — February 2023

Performance (Q1 April to June) and In-Year
Budget Monitoring

6 December 2023

Performance (Q2 July to September) and In-Year

Budget Monitoring




ot abed

January 2024

Scrutiny of 2024/25 Budget

March 2024

Performance (Q3 October to December) and In-
Year Budget Monitoring

Annual Update on Educational Performance
Outcomes

22 March 2023

Possible Future
Items

TBC Current organisation of Education within the Requested by Panel 16 July 2021

County (2 tier/3 tier) To be considered when further KS2
data available

TBC Update on the Assessment Pathway for children Requested by Panel 11 January
who have Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder 2022
(ADHD)

TBC Children Missing Education Requested by Panel 23 March 2023

TBC Ofsted Inspecting local authority children’s 11 September 2019 ILACS inspection due post July 2022
services (ILACS) Inspection — Feedback

TBC Delivery Model for Medical Education Provision — | 16 March 2021
Update

TBC Autism provision and the availability of places Requested by Panel 10 May 2022
within education settings

TBC Nursery provision and wrap around care Following Budget announcement

March 2023

Standing Items

March Education Performance outcomes Annually
July WSCP Annual Safeguarding Report Annually
November/January | Budget Scrutiny Annually
March/July/Septem | Quarterly Performance and In-Year Budget Quarterly
ber/November Monitoring




/v obed

SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24

Corporate and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Date of Meeting

Issue for Scrutiny

Date of Last Report

Notes/Follow-up Action

8 June 2023 Libraries Unlocked Suggested by Assistant Director for
Communities for June Panel meeting.
Registration of Deaths within § days (including
out of hours registration)
25 July 2023 Performance and In-Year Budget Monitoring 28 March 2023

(Q4 January-March 2023)

Power Bl update

1 January 2023

3 October 2023

Performance and In-Year Budget Monitoring
(Q1 April to June)

25 July 2023

Performance Monitoring of Comments,
Compliments and Complaints

21 September 2022

The Council’'s Customer Contact Centre
(including accessibility options)

23 November 2023

Performance and In-Year Budget Monitoring
(Q2 July to September)

25 July 2023

Review of Museums, Arts and Culture Strategy
2023/24

1 November 2022

January 2024

Scrutiny of 2024/25 Budget

March 2024

Performance (Q3 October to December) and In-
Year Budget Monitoring




8y abed

Possible Future
Items

TBC Artificial Intelligence (Al) and Chat GTi systems Suggested at 28 March 2023 meeting
TBC Member Portal — Case Management System Suggested at 28 March 2023 meeting
TBC Update on role of Here2Help (including the Agreed at 19 January 2023 meeting
Executive Summary of the Business Plan).
TBC Worcestershire One Public Estate Agreed at 14 February 2022 meeting
TBC Electric Vehicle charging points on the County Agreed at 14 February 2022 meeting
Council Estate
TBC Council Communication 8 November 2021 Agreed at 8 November 2021 meeting
TBC West Mercia Energy Joint Committee Business 17 January 2022
Plan
Standing Items
November/January | Budget Scrutiny
Annual update on the Council’s energy 17 January 2022 Agreed at October 2021 Overview and
purchasing arrangement via the West Mercia Scrutiny Performance Board
Energy Joint Committee including the Business
Plan
TBC Councillors Divisional Funding Scheme 20 July 2021
TBC Worcestershire County Council Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 Policy (RIPA)
TBC Performance monitoring of comments, 21 September 2022

compliments and complaints

8 November 2021
20 July 2021
11 March 2021




61 obed

SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24

Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Date of Meeting

Issue for Scrutiny

Date of Last
Report

Notes/Follow-up Action

7 June 2023

District Council Economic Challenges and how
the County Council could help — Bromsgrove
District Council

27 March 2023

Worcestershire’s Workforce Skills, including the
role of Colleges

Panel Member suggestion June 2022

17 July 2023

Performance (Q4 January to March) and In-Year
Budget Monitoring

5 October 2023

Performance (Q1 April to June) and In-Year
Budget Monitoring

17 November 2023

Performance (Q2 July to September) and In-Year
Budget Monitoring

January 2024

Scrutiny of 2024/25 Budget

March 2024

Performance (Q3 October to December) and In-
Year Budget Monitoring

Possible Future
Items

June to October
2023

Rail Strategy

Agenda Planning Directorate
suggestion September 2022

end of 2023/24

Local Transport Plan 5

Agenda Planning Directorate
suggestion September 2022

TBC

Shrub Hill Quarter

Agenda Planning January 2023




0S abed

TBC Rural Economy and Agriculture, including Panel Member suggestion June 2022
workforce and skills, access to training and
operating costs

TBC Worcestershire’s Business Parks, including Panel Member suggestion June 2022
occupancy levels post Covid-19

TBC Worcestershire’s Employment Levels Panel Member suggestion June 2022

TBC Opportunities for Growth, including the available Panel Member suggestion June 2022
space for specific sectors

TBC Strategic Infrastructure, including road and rail Panel Member suggestion June 2022
developments

TBC Partnership Working, including the role of District Panel Member suggestion June 2022
Councils and the Private Sector

TBC The levelling up agenda and the impact on Suggested by OSPB 29 June 2022
Worcestershire (including the Towns funding
allocated to Redditch and Worcester and the
impact on all main towns in Worcestershire)

TBC Post Offices/Postal Services in Worcestershire Suggested by OSPB 29 June 2022

TBC County Council processes for scrutinising Suggested at the 29 July 2022 Panel
contracts involving County Council funding meeting

TBC Town Centres Suggested at the 29 July 2022 Panel

meeting
TBC following The Council’s assets and how they are managed Agenda planning February 2023

further scoping

TBC

The Council’s position on encouraging the over
50’s back into the workforce

Suggested at 27 March 2023 meeting




TG abed

Standing Items

Mar/Jul/Sep/Nov

Performance and In-year Budget Monitoring

November/January

Budget Scrutiny Process

District Council Economic Challenges and how
the County Council could help

Broadband Annual Update

Worcestershire Local Enterprise Partnership
(WLEP)

Moved from OSPB Agenda for 2023
Annual Update




This page is intentionally left blank



€G abed

SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Date of Meeting

Issue for Scrutiny

Date of Last Report

Notes/Follow-up Action

Community Transport, DRT, Bus Service
Improvement Plan and HTST bus passes

26 May 2023 Road Diversion Signs Requested by Chairman 22
November 2022
Issue of reinstatement and utility works (use of Requested by Panel 23 March that
Section 58 restrictions) report covers 2 additional items as
Severn Trent emergency work permits. listed.
19 July 2023 Update on Street Lighting (to include LED Requested by Panel 18 Jan 2023
conversion)
Solar Power Generation & Use Requested by Panel 18 Jan 2023
Electrification/Charging points. Requested by Panel 23 March 2023
that additional item is included.
Worcestershire Streetscape Design Guide Prior to being considered by Cabinet.
Performance (Q4 January - March) and Year-
End Budget Monitoring
25 September 2023 | Update on Buses September 2022 Requested by Panel 18 Jan 2023

Requested by Panel 23 March 2023
that the additional items be included.

Performance (Q1 April to June) and In-Year
Budget Monitoring

30 November 2023

Net Zero Plan Update

Update on cutting congestion and the cycling
and walking infrastructure

Regular update requested by Panel
Nov 2022

Requested by Panel 23 March 2023
that the 2 additional items be included
in update.




G abed

Performance (Q2 July to September) and In-

Year Budget Monitoring
January 2024 Scrutiny of 2023/24 Budget
March 2024 Performance (Q3 October to December) and In-

Year Budget Monitoring

Possible Future
items

TBC Monitoring of Section 38 agreements Requested by Chairman Feb 2023
TBC Environment Act - update on developments when Requested by Panel on 7 October
further guidance has been provided by Central 2022
Government
TBC Waste Management Service Contract 8 November 2022 Update report once contract
extension has been agreed
TBC Road Safety and Reduction of Speeding by use | 13 May 2022 Update in 12 to 18 months
of Built Highways Infrastructure
TBC Environment approach: partnership working Suggested by CMR June 22
TBC Rainbow Crossings Suggested at OSPB on 29 June 2022

Standing Items

March/July/ Budget and In-year performance monitoring

Sept/Nov

November/January Budget Scrutiny Process

Annually Flood Risk Management Annual Report 23 March 2023




GG abed

SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting

Issue for Scrutiny

Date of Last Report

Notes / Follow-up Action

programme and future plans

10 May 2023 Workforce 10 June 2022 Requested at 17 October 2022 meeting
Update on the Integrated Care Strategy 2 November 2022 Requested at 2 November 2022 meeting
Maternity Services (to monitor progress of the 17 October 2022 Requested at 17 October 2022 Meeting
Acute Trust’s Action Plan for improvement) 9 May 2022

21 September 2021

15 June 2023 Update on Improving Patient Flow* 10 February 2023 Requested at 10 February 2023 meeting
to include Onward Care Team and Integrated
Intermediate Care Service

10 July 2023 Worcestershire Mental Health Needs 21 September 2021 Following the discussion of the Needs
Assessment 19 September 2018 | Assessment the priorities for further scrutiny will

(CAMHS) be identified
Adult Mental Health Inpatient Services Redesign Suggested by Herefordshire and Worcestershire
Health and Care Trust on 17 April 2023

Public Health Ring Fenced Grant (PHRFG) —
Twice Yearly Budget Monitoring

Sep/Oct 2023 Progress against targets for the elective recovery Requested at 13 March 2023 HOSC
programme and future plans

Sep/Oct 2023 Update on CQC Inspection (including a range of Agenda planning March 2023
mental health and physical health services and
the Hillcrest Mental Health Ward)

Sep/Oct 2023 Progress against targets for the elective recovery Requested at 13 March 2023 HOSC




96 afed

Possible Future Items

Ongoing Integrated Care System (ICS) Development 2 November 2022

2023 Commissioning Arrangements under the Including Pharmacy, Dentistry, Optometry,
Integrated Care System (ICS) Specialised Acute, new arrangements for Mental

Health, Specialist Mental Health and Prison
Health

2023 Community Paediatric Services Suggested at Agenda Planning 23 August 2022

2023 Screening (Cervical/Antenatal/Newborn/Diabetic Suggested at 19 July 2021 meeting
Eye/Abdominal Aortic Aneurysm
(AAA)/Breast/Bowel)

2023 Routine Immunisation Suggested at 19 July 2021 Meeting

2023 Hospital at Home Service Requested at 10 June 2022 meeting

TBC Update on Garden Suite Ambulatory 19 July 2021 To review service relocation from February 2023
Chemotherapy Service

TBC Stroke Services — update

TBC Update on Dental Services Access Requested at 9 March 2022 meeting

TBC End of Life Care Requested at 10 June 2022 meeting

TBC Prevention Work in Health and Social Care Suggested at 17 October 2022 meeting

TBC Glaucoma Services Suggested at 17 October 2022 meeting

TBC NHS Health Checks Programme Requested at 13 January 2023 meeting

TBC Podiatry services Requested at 10 February 2023 meeting

TBC Long Term plan for WAHT Theatres Requested at 13 March 2023 HOSC

TBC Update on Community Pharmacies Requested at 18 April 2023 HOSC




/G abed

Standing Items

When required

Substantial NHS Service Changes requiring
consultation with HOSC

TBC NHS Quality Accounts Quality and Performance

TBC Annual Update on Health and Wellbeing Strategy | 17 October 2022

January/July Public Health Ring Fenced Grant (PHRFG) — 13 January 2023,
Twice Yearly Budget Monitoring 8 July 2022

TBC Performance Indicators

TBC Annual Update from West Midlands Ambulance 27 June 2019
Service

March Review of the Work Programme

*Scrutiny of patient flow is a continuation of the Scrutiny Task Group in November 2021




This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 7

"worcestershire
countycouncil

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE BOARD
28 APRIL 2023

SCRUTINY CHAIRMEN (AND LEAD MEMBER) UPDATE AND
CABINET FORWARD PLAN

Summary

1. Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board (the Board) are asked
to provide feedback on the work within their Scrutiny remit, Panels and Task Groups
and any items to be considered from the latest Cabinet Forward Plan.

Member Updates

2. In order to ensure that Members of the Board are fully informed about issues
relating to scrutiny in Worcestershire, communication between Members is
essential.

3. Members of the Board are therefore invited to feedback on recent Scrutiny
meetings (including performance and budget monitoring), Task Groups and
emerging issues and developments within their remit. Regard for the Council’s
statutory requirements in relation to access to information will be critical.

4. Board Members' areas of responsibility are as follows:

Adult Care and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Panel — Shirley Webb
Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Panel — Steve Mackay
Corporate and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel — Emma Stokes
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel — Matt Dormer

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel — Alastair Adams

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HOSC) — Brandon Clayton
Crime and Disorder — Richard Udall

5. To assist in their role, scrutiny lead members have the benefit of regular briefings
from the Directorates they are shadowing, something which was put into place by
the Strategic Leadership Team (SLT). These briefings, alongside the Cabinet
Forward Plan (see below), can be used to help identify any emerging issues that
may be appropriate for future scrutiny. Recognising that work across the County
Council is of interest and value to all Board members, the notes from these briefings
(where produced) are available to all members electronically.

6. The main responsibilities of the Board are:
o Commissioning work for Scrutiny Panels

o Establishing Scrutiny Task Groups (agreeing Terms of reference and
Reports)

Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board — 28 April 2023
Page 59



o Advising on Council’s Policy Framework ie Sustainable Community
Strategy (if any), Corporate Plan, Children and Young People's Plan, Local
Transport Plan, Youth Justice Plan, 'Act Local in Worcestershire'
framework, such other plans and strategies as required by law to form part
of the Policy Framework or which may be and have been adopted to be
part of that Framework eg Corporate Plan, Budget

o Call-ins

o Designated by the Council as its statutory Crime and Disorder Committee
and must meet at least annually.

7. The Board agreed to use a set of criteria (listed below) to help determine its
scrutiny programme. A topic does not need to meet all of these criteria to be
scrutinised, but they are intended as a guide for prioritisation.

. Is the issue a priority area for the Council?

. Is it a key issue for local people?

. Will it be practicable to implement the outcomes of the scrutiny?
. Are improvements for local people likely?

. Does it examine a poor performing service?
. Will it result in improvements to the way the Council operates?
. Is it related to new Government guidance or legislation?

Cabinet Forward Plan

8. The Board will wish to consider any issues arising from the Council's Forward
Plan. The latest version of the Plan available at the time of Agenda despatch is
attached at Appendix 1 for consideration.

Purpose of the Meeting
9. Members of the Board are asked to feedback on:

the work within their Scrutiny remit, Panels and Task Groups;

key issues from the Directorate that may be appropriate for future scrutiny;
performance information they have queries or concerns about;

items in the Forward Plan which they consider may be possible issues to
scrutinise; and

e any other issue which they feel is relevant/of interest to the OSPB.

Supporting Information

Appendix 1: Forward Plan 2023

Contact Point for the Report

Samantha Morris, Interim Democratic Governance and Scrutiny Manager - Tel: 01905
844963
Email: simorris@worcestershire.gov.uk

Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board — 28 April 2023

Page 60


https://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20088/about_your_council/681/worcestershire_county_councils_forward_plan
mailto:sjmorris@worcestershire.gov.uk

Background Papers

In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Assistant Director for Legal and
Governance) there are no background papers relating to the subject matter of this
report:

All agendas and minutes are available on the Council's website.

Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board — 28 April 2023

Page 61


http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/cms/democratic-services/minutes-and-agendas.aspx

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

EXTRACT OF FORWARD PLAN

FORMAL NOTICE OF KEY DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN BY, AND PRIVATE MEETINGS OF,

CABINET (OR OTHER EXECUTIVE DECISION-MAKING BODY OR PERSON)

Forward Plan Expected Date of
Decision

Cardio Pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Training and 25 May 2023

defibrillators in schools

New Entry

Scrutiny Report - Developer Funded Highways 25 May 2023

Infrastructure Scrutiny Task Group

New Entry

Worcestershire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual 25 May 2023

Report

Adult Social Care — Local Account 2022-23 29 June 2023

Income and Debt Policy 29 June 2023

Resources Report - Provisional Financial Outturn 29 June 2023

Results 2022/23

Transfer of Coroners Officers to Worcestershire County 29 June 2023

Council

New Entry Potential Key Decision

Approval of Worcestershire Strategy for Children and 20 July 2023
Young People with SEND
New Entry Key Decision

Worcestershire Safeguarding Children Partnership 20 July 2023
Annual Report 2021/2022

New Entry

Worcestershire Streetscape Design Guide Approval 20 July 2023
Key Decision

Minerals and Waste Local Development Scheme 28 September 2023
(2023)

Key Decision

Worcestershire County Museum Review 28 September 2023
Income and Debt Policy 8 November 2023
New Entry

'Called In' Decisions or Scrutiny Reports Within the plan period
Potentially Key Decision

Notices of Motion Within the plan period

Potentially Key Decision

All entries will be for decision by Cabinet unless otherwise indicated

Page | 1

www.worcestershire.gov.uk

Page 63

Page No.

10

11

12

13

14

15



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Draft Scrutiny Report: Developer-Funded Highways Infrastructure
	OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE BOARD
	28 APRIL 2023
	DRAFT SCRUTINY REPORT: DEVELOPER-FUNDED HIGHWAYS INFRASTRUCTURE
	Summary
	Background
	OSPB's Role
	Purpose of the Meeting
	Supporting Information
	Appendix 1 - Draft Scrutiny Report: Develop-Funded Highways Infrastructure
	Contact Points
	Background Papers

	01a item 5 appx 1 draft S278 scrutiny report
	Scrutiny Report
	Developer-Funded Highways Infrastructure Scrutiny Task Group
	Scrutiny Task Group Membership
	Foreword
	Background and Purpose of the Scrutiny
	The Task Group’s approach
	Findings

	Discussions with other Local Authorities
	83.	In order to understand how the Council’s approach and processes around developer-funded infrastructure compared, the Task Group sought to meet with other local authorities. Discussions with Officers from Staffordshire County Council (SCC) and Hampshire County Council (HCC) took place whose approaches were different, and both meetings were very useful.


	6 Refresh of the Scrutiny Work Programme
	OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE BOARD
	28 APRIL 2023
	REFRESH OF THE SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME
	Summary
	Developing a Scrutiny Work Programme
	Issues suitable for scrutiny
	Purpose of the Meeting
		determine the Scrutiny Work Programme for 2023/24 to be considered by full Council.
	Supporting Information
	Background Papers

	03 item 6 Appx OSPB Work Programme
	04 item 6 Appx Adults Work Programme
	05 item 6 Appx Children's Work Programme
	06 item 6 Appx C&C Work Programme
	07 item 6 Appx Economy Work Programme
	08 item 6 Appx Environment Work Programme
	09 item 6 Appx HOSC Work Programme

	7 Scrutiny Chairmen (and Lead Member) Update and Cabinet Forward Plan
	OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE BOARD
	28 APRIL 2023
	SCRUTINY CHAIRMEN (AND LEAD MEMBER) UPDATE AND CABINET FORWARD PLAN
	Summary
	Member Updates
		Commissioning work for Scrutiny Panels
		Establishing Scrutiny Task Groups (agreeing Terms of reference and Reports)
		Advising on Council’s Policy Framework ie Sustainable Community Strategy (if any), Corporate Plan, Children and Young People's Plan, Local Transport Plan, Youth Justice Plan, 'Act Local in Worcestershire' framework, such other plans and strategies as required by law to form part of the Policy Framework or which may be and have been adopted to be part of that Framework eg Corporate Plan, Budget
		Call-ins
		Designated by the Council as its statutory Crime and Disorder Committee and must meet at least annually.
	7.	The Board agreed to use a set of criteria (listed below) to help determine its scrutiny programme.  A topic does not need to meet all of these criteria to be scrutinised, but they are intended as a guide for prioritisation.
	•	Is the issue a priority area for the Council?
	•	Is it a key issue for local people?
	•	Will it be practicable to implement the outcomes of the scrutiny?
	•	Are improvements for local people likely?
	•	Does it examine a poor performing service?
	•	Will it result in improvements to the way the Council operates?
	•	Is it related to new Government guidance or legislation?
	Cabinet Forward Plan
	Supporting Information
	Appendix 1: Forward Plan 2023
	Contact Point for the Report
	Background Papers

	11 item 7 appx 1 forward plan
	EXTRACT OF FORWARD PLAN



